YOUTH OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

January 20, 2022 8:30 A.M. Zoom Platform

PRESENT: K. Shanks-Booth, V. Zeppelin, J. Clemons, J. Harriott

EXCUSED: C. Malcolm

GUEST:

STAFF: R. Avila, S. Alvord, D. Achilles

CALL TO ORDER

Ms. Shanks-Booth called the meeting to order at 8:36 a.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – December 16, 2021

It was moved by Mr. Harriott and seconded by Ms. Shanks-Booth and unanimously adopted by voice vote of members present to approve the minutes of December 16, 2021.

APPROVAL OF CHANGE TO YOUTH WORK EXPERIENCE POLICY

Ms. Alvord reported to the Committee that the Youth Work Experience Policy pay rate has been updated to Tompkins County Living Wage for the WIOA Youth Program participants.

It was moved by Ms. Shanks-Booth and seconded by Mr. Clemons and unanimously adopted by voice vote of members present to approve the Youth Work Experience Policy.

2022 SUMMER YOUTH EMPLOYMENT RFP UPDATE

Ms. Alvord reported to the Committee that the 2022 Summer Youth Employment RFP has been released for bids ahead of schedule. Bids are due to County Purchasing by Thursday, March 3rd at 1pm and will be shares with Committee once the Board receives them. The Committee will have time to review the bids before voting at the Thursday, March 17th Committee meeting.

WIOA YOUTH REPORTING TOOL REVISITED

Ms. Alvord reviewed the WIOA Youth Reporting Tool and shared that it will need to be updated before implementing. This is a tool that the Committee used in year's past to review the WIOA Youth Program but was halted in 2020 due to the pandemic. The Career Center will again be asked to use this tool to report to the Committee on a bi-monthly basis on their year-round program. Ms. Alvord would like the Committee members to review the tool and share any suggestions for changes that need to be made in our next committee meeting.

Ms. Alvord reported that Career Center staff, either Ms. Mouillesseaux or Ms. Callahan, will be in attendance at the beginning of our next meeting on February 17th to provide a Quarterly Update on the WIOA Youth program.

DIRECTOR'S UPDATE

Ms. Avila reported to the Committee that NYSDOL Program Monitoring started on January 10th. Ms. Mouillesseaux and Ms. Callahan are in the process of submitting documentation required as a result of this monitoring.

Ms. Avila reported that the Board is in the process of interviewing for the Workforce Development Associate position. The Board staff is having discussion around the current candidates and will be making an offer within the next week or two.

Ms. Shanks-Booth inquired about the Workforce Development Board Director position. Ms. Avila reported that the position has been closed and she has not received any updates.

ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Shanks-Booth adjourned the meeting at 09:59 a.m.

The next meeting is scheduled for February 17, 2022

Tompkins County Workforce Development Board WIOA YOUTH Work Experience Policy

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to define eligibility, assignment, documentation, duration, and salary for Work Experiences assigned to youth enrolled in the WIOA Youth Program. Work Experiences can be paid or unpaid and are assigned to help job-ready youth learn soft skills such as attendance, teamwork, initiative, etc., as well as job related skills they can use to progress towards their career goals.

Background

At least 20% of the program year's Youth Fund (net of Admin portion) must be spent in Youth Work Experience as set by WIOA Section 129 (c)(4). Allowable Work Experience expenses include the following (per TEGL 8-15):

- Wages and Stipends paid for participation in a work experience;
- Staff time working to identify and develop a work experience opportunity, including staff time spent working with employers to identify and develop a work experience opportunity;
- Staff time working with employers to ensure a successful work experience, including staff time spent managing the work experience;
- Staff time spent evaluating the work experience;
- Participant work experience orientation sessions;
- Employer work experience orientation sessions;
- Classroom training or the required academic education component directly related to the work experience;
- Incentive payments directly tied to the completion of the work experience; and
- Employability skills/job readiness training to prepare youth for a work experience.

All other expenses not defined as above will not be allowable work experience expenses. Supportive services are a separate program element and cannot be counted toward the work experience expenditure requirement even if the supportive services assist the youth in participating in the work experience (per TEGL 21-16).

Policy

Eligibility:

All youth assessed as eligible youth under WIOA Section 129(a)(1) and enrolled in the WIOA Youth program will be eligible for Youth Work Experience. Youth are required to develop a career pathway before beginning a Work Experience. If a youth is unsure of their career goal(s), they should complete further career exploration through Career Zone, O*Net Interest Profiler, use of Labor Market Information, etc. and/or through Job Shadow experience(s) before beginning a Work Experience.

Note: Job Shadows can be completed in a couple of hours to a couple of days to expose youth to different careers they are interested in but are not sure that they want to pursue. Job Shadows are unpaid, and youth can complete as many as necessary to determine their career pathway.

A youth's career pathway should be clearly defined in their **Individual Service Strategy (ISS)** before beginning a Work Experience.

<u>Definition of the Work Experience:</u>

According to the Federal Register Vol 81, no. 161-681.600, Work Experiences:

- are a planned, structured learning experience that takes place in a workplace for a limited period of time.
- may be payed or unpaid, as appropriate.
- may take place in the private for-profit sector, the non-profit sector, or the public sector.
- provide the youth participant with opportunities for career exploration and skill development.
- must include academic and occupational education. The educational component may occur
 concurrently or sequentially with the work experience. Further academic and occupational
 education may occur inside or outside the workplace.

Labor Standards:

Labor Standards apply in any Work Experience where an employee/employer relationship, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act or applicable State law, exists. Funds provided for work experiences <u>may</u> <u>not</u> be used to directly or indirectly aid in the filling of a job opening that is vacant because the former occupant is on strike or is being locked out in the course of a labor dispute, or the filling of which is otherwise an issue in a labor dispute involving a work stoppage.

Types of Work Experience:

Work experiences are meant to be short-term, planned, structured job-related learning experiences. The types of Work Experience for eligible youth include the following categories:

- 1.) Summer Employment opportunities and other employment opportunities available throughout the school year;
- 2.) Pre-apprenticeship programs;
- 3.) Internships and job shadowing; and
- 4.) On-the-job training (OJT) opportunities as defined in WIOA sec. 3(44) and in §680.700 of the same chapter.

Reasons for Work Experience:

- 1.) Assessment (determine youth's readiness, skills needed, interests, etc.) *Note: Work Experience(s) for assessment purposes should be brief (i.e. job shadow, career exploration) and may occur as often as needed. It is recommended that a single Work Experience for assessment purposes last no longer than 4 weeks maximum.*
- 2.) Skill Gain (i.e. soft or hard skills needed for the youth's identified career pathway)
- 3.) Reference Gain (i.e. development of work history)
- 4.) Potential for unsubsidized employment/hire upon completion of the Work Experience

Duration of the Work Experience:

As Work Experience are meant to be short-term, planned, structured job-related learning experiences, there will be a maximum hour limit set for a youth's lifetime. This should be clearly communicated with the youth and with the worksites <u>before</u> a work experience begins. The TCWDB has set local limit that each youth is allotted **up to a total of 480 hours (i.e. 12 weeks of full time work) of <u>paid</u> Work Experience during their enrollment in the WIOA youth program provided funding is available.** *Note:* **Any <u>unpaid</u> work experiences such as job shadowing does not detract from the 480 hours.**

Administrative Override: There may be instances where a youth will need more than 480 hours of <u>paid</u> work experience support (i.e. youth with disabilities requiring extensive job coaching). Staff must submit thorough documentation of support for why additional hours are needed for this youth, with a timeline for how many additional hours are needed, not to be extended "indefinitely". The purpose of the work experience is to transition to unsubsidized work; therefore, a detailed plan of transition must be in place for any youth determined to need an extension of hours. The use of an Administrative Override is pending on funding availability, to be determined on a case-by-case basis.

Education/Training Component:

At least one **education/training component** must be incorporated into the Work Experience as defined in TEGL 21-16: "workforce preparation activities, basic academic skills, and hands-on occupational skills training are to be taught within the same time frame and connected to training in a specific occupation, occupational cluster, or career pathway". Therefore, the **education/training** component(s) should:

- directly relate to the Work Experience and assist the youth with their career goals;
- be clearly defined in the youth's ISS **before** the youth starts a Work Experience;
- occur inside or outside the workplace; and
- occur either concurrently or sequentially with the Work Experience.

In keeping with best practice regarding youth development and learning theory, it is recommended that the education/training component occur concurrently with the Work Experience and occur inside the workplace.

Note: HSE Classes and general Work Readiness Workshops can <u>not</u> count as the education/training component <u>unless</u> it specifically relates the work experience/needs of the youth to obtain their career goal(s) and is documented as such in the youth's ISS and in OSOS Comments.

Fiscal Management:

Youth will earn the Tompkins County Living Wage. Youth counselors are responsible for collecting youth's timesheets, submitting to their fiscal departments, and putting a copy of the timesheet in the youth's paper file. Each youth counselor's fiscal department will control payroll and produce checks, and the youth counselor is responsible for delivering checks to youth.

WIOA Youth priority on Work Experience: WIOA places a priority on providing valuable work experiences to youth and has set a 20% minimum budget expenditure to go towards the Work Experience. Youth counselors should communicate with their fiscal department and/or direct Supervisor to track if they are spending at least 20% of their budget on Work Experience, and to make sure they know how much money is left to spend on Work Experience throughout the fiscal year. TEGL 23-14 states that this 20% minimum is calculated based on overall non-administrative local area youth funds and is not applied separately for In School Youth (ISY) and Out of School Youth (OSY).

Procedure

- 1.) Assess eligibility of youth under WIOA Section 129(a)(1). Once eligibility in the WIOA Youth program is established, all youth must complete:
 - an Objective Assessment (following TCWDB Objective Assessment Policy guidelines); and
 - an ISS which clearly outlines a youths' career pathway (if career pathway is unknown, refer to Eligibility section above for career exploration options).

- 2.) Staff must **document** the assignment of a Work Experience in OSOS as a Service provided (use Achievement Objective tab in the Customer Module, Services Window, Services Tab), and further document in OSOS Comments the Work Experience location, **start date**, job duties, education/training component, correlation with career pathway, progress and **end date**. Any updates to the youth's ISS should be updated in OSOS as well. For further directive, staff should please refer to the "411 on WIOA Title I Youth Program Services" (Nov. 2019 updated) document.
- 3.) A Work Experience assignment should correlate with the youth's career pathway, take any disabilities/limitations into consideration, and be age appropriate (comply with labor laws).
- 4.) Employers providing Work Experiences should complete a **Worksite Agreement** and copies should be kept in the youth's paper file for access during monitoring procedures. Each worksite should have at least one designated **Worksite Supervisor** who the youth report to, signs timesheets, and provides updates/evaluation feedback to the youth counselor.
- 5.) Worksite Supervisors and Youth must both sign a completed Job Training Outline which specifies the youth's work experience goals, academic and occupational education components that will be incorporated, and a detailed work description (hourly wage rate, number of hours to be worked per week, start and end date, general work duties, etc.).
- 4.) Copies of timesheets should be kept in the youth's paper file along with copies of any payroll documents.
- 5.) Youth counselors are to maintain **routine communication** with Worksite Supervisors to:
 - determine what new skills the youth has learned;
 - obtain feedback from the worksite supervisor;
 - ensure the youth is complying with their assigned work schedule;
 - determine if the worksite is a good fit for the youth; and
 - determine how long the youth is expected to remain at the worksite.

If it is determined that the youth is not a good fit for the worksite, or if the youth redefines their career pathway, the youth may be reassigned to a <u>new</u> Work Experience. Youth counselors and/or Worksite Supervisors have the right to end a youth's Work Experience early due to any misconduct on the youth's part.

- 6.) **Evaluation** forms should be given to all Worksite Supervisors to complete on a routine basis (attaching the evaluation form to the youth's timesheet is an effective method to encourage evaluation completion). Questions/Comments sections can be general or tailored specifically to address specific concerns/barriers with the youth's progress.
- 7.) **Site Visits** should be conducted on a routine basis and can be **scheduled** in advance to ensure the Worksite Supervisor and youth will be available or can be **unannounced** as the Youth counselor sees fit.
- 8.) It is the responsibility of the Youth counselor to meet the needs of the Business (worksite) and maintain a successful working relationship while tracking youth's progress and providing WIOA-based **Supportive Services** and activities to the youth as needed for their success.
- 9.) **Education/Training Component:** see section above re: incorporation of concurrent or sequential education/training component; documentation in ISS and OSOS Comments must clearly outline the connection of the education/training component to the youth's identified career pathway.
- 10.) The Worksite Supervisor and the youth should be notified at least 1 week prior to the youth's final day of work. Youth should be encouraged to speak with their Supervisor about continuing employment or obtaining a professional job reference to aid in their job search. The end date of the youth's Work

Experience should be noted in both the youth's ISS and in the OSOS Services Tab and Comments section.

11.) Updated record should be kept ensuring youth does not surpass their maximum lifetime allotment of **480 hours of paid work experience** (exceptions to maximum hours apply in the event of an Administrative Override occurring; however, detailed records must still be maintained).

TOMPKINS COUNTY GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS and CONDITIONS

Responses submitted to any Request for Bids, Request for Proposals, or Request for Qualifications become the property of Tompkins County and are subject to Public Information Policy. Any confidential information, such as a company's financial status, if required by the specifications, shall be submitted in a separate sealed envelope with the word "CONFIDENTIAL" on the outside.

MWBE entities are encouraged to submit bids.

Note: The following terms are used interchangeably: Consultant, Contractor, Respondent, Responder, and Bidder. Additionally, the following terms may be used interchangeably: Contract and Agreement.

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:

1. Title: 2022 Summer Youth Employment Program

2. Requesting Department: Tompkins County Workforce Development Board

3. Due Date/Time: Thursday, March 3, 2022 @ 1:00pm

SPECIFICATIONS:

The County does not assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of proposals.

SUBMISSION of PROPOSALS:

- Required documents shall be submitted online at the following location: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase (see instructions for online submission below). Respondents who do not have or cannot obtain internet access must contact the Purchasing Division, (607) 274-5500 for further submission instructions. Please add contracts@tompkinscountyny.gov to your email address book to ensure timely notifications regarding the project(s) you have requested.
- 2. Responses must be uploaded and responded to no later than the date and time indicated in the Project Identification section above.
- Tompkins County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals in whole or in part, to waive any and all informalities, and to disregard all non-conforming, non-responsive or conditional proposals.

ONLINE SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS:

Responses to the Request for Proposals shall be submitted online at the Tompkins County Purchasing website: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase. To submit a response, vendors should take the following steps:

Bids and any other required documents shall be submitted online through the Tompkins County website at:
 <u>www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase</u> and selecting 'Open Solicitations'. This will take you to BidNetDirect where
 the RFP information is posted for the public. Bidders who do not have, or cannot obtain, internet access must contact the
 Purchasing Division via email (preferred), purchase@tompkins-co.org or by telephone, (607) 274-5500 for further
 instructions

*NOTE: If you experience difficulty submitting a response, please contact the Purchasing Division via email (preferred), purchase@tompkins-co.org or by telephone, (607) 274-5500 immediately for assistance or further instructions. If you do not receive a response from the above provided telephone number, you may contact (607) 274-5544.

TERM of CONTRACT:

The term of this Contract shall be from May 1, 2022 to September 30, 2022 from the date of the fully executed Contract.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT:

The Tompkins County Workforce Development Board will be the administrative agency for the resulting agreement.

SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS:

BACKGROUND

The Tompkins County Workforce Development Board (WDB) has administered successful state-funded Summer Youth Employment Programs for many years. Even with the current budgetary constraints due to the pandemic, it is anticipated that the New York State budget will include an allocation of funds for a state funded Summer Youth Employment Program. Therefore, the Tompkins County Workforce Development Board (WDB) anticipates awarding approximately \$350,000. Funding is anticipated for allowable SYEP expenditures made from May 1, 2022 to September 30, 2022.

PLEASE NOTE:

The WDB is proceeding with this request for proposals with the understanding that New York State may or may not appropriate funds for this program. Although significant changes are not anticipated, the conditions and standards applied to the potential appropriation have not been established and may impact the design and implementation of the local program. The Tompkins County Workforce Development Board may modify or refuse to make awards based on the availability of funds.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST

To prepare for this summer employment program, the WDB is soliciting proposals for summer youth employment programs to serve youth between the ages of 14-20 years old, living in families who receive TANF benefits or in families who are at or below 200% of the federal poverty level. Proposals are encouraged from for-profit, not-for-profit organizations, educational entities, and local governments.

PROGRAM OBJECTIVES

- Provide youth with barriers to employment an opportunity to earn a paycheck
- Provide youth with a supportive, first time work experience
- · Train youth in skills that are currently needed in the labor market
- Expose youth to careers, employers, and the world of work
- Develop workplace etiquette and strengthen basic employment skills
- Cultivate cultural competence
- Reinforce the relationship between academics and skills needed on the job
- Encourage youth to earn a high school diploma
- Provide an entry point into the workforce development system

REQUIRED PROGRAM PARAMETERS

<u>Intent</u> The Workforce Development Board is interested in supporting innovative programs that:

- · support youth with exceptional barriers to employment to achieve success with summer youth employment
- help youth to overcome persistent transportation problems and/or other barriers
- · link to area employers who have career pathways in local industries such as manufacturing or healthcare
- re-engage youth in secondary or postsecondary education

Proposals <u>must</u> demonstrate how they are <u>recruiting and supporting</u> youth to overcome systemic and structural barriers in securing first time employment opportunities. Youth of color, rural youth, youth with disabilities, and youth experiencing poverty frequently need creative, innovative programs to go beyond "business as usual" to promote an equitable summer youth experience. Successful applicants will be explicit with their plans to engage youth and overcome such barriers.

Structure The program must consist of a combination of employment and academic enrichment with emphasis placed on youth undertaking a paid work experience. Financial Literacy is a required element. Stand-alone educational/academic models will not be considered. Program trips to amusement parks or similar events will not be reimbursable/subject to reimbursement with this funding.

<u>Duration</u> Youth should work between 20-30 hours per week, not to exceed 35 hours per week. If youth work while school is in session, special attention must be paid to the laws governing the employment of minors. Funding is available from May 1 – September 30, 2022.

Youth work readiness, career exploration, and financial literacy activities may begin prior to their work experience. If youth are being paid for these activities, providers must ensure that youth working papers are collected prior to their participation.

Pay All youth must be paid minimum wage which as of January 1, 2022 is \$13.20 per hour. Wages are paid for work and may be paid for academic/educational activities. All Federal and New York state wage and hour laws must be followed, and hours must be documented on the participant's timesheet. Participant lunch period must be unpaid. It is expected that participants will be on the provider's payroll. Any exceptions would need prior approval by the WDB.

<u>Job Characteristics</u> Work experience can be in the public or private sector and may include project-based employment. Employment tasks must be consistent with the New York State minimum-age standards for employed youth under the age of 18. Youth may be placed in jobs on site or off site *with supervision*.

<u>Budget</u> At least 65% of overall budget must be utilized for participant costs. Participant costs are defined as participant wage and fringe, transportation, counseling and employer related services (such as clothing/uniforms or other supplies required by the employer), training supplies (including technology purchases for the youth), and incentive payments.

FOCUS POPULATIONS

Program participants are limited to economically disadvantaged youth ages 14-20. <u>Participants must reside in Tompkins County</u>. Participants from outlying counties should be referred to the SYEP Program in their county of residence. See the attached list of SYEP Program contacts for the counties contiguous to Tompkins (pg. 15). Programs may serve any or all ages within the targeted age range. Participants currently residing in DJJOY residential facilities are limited to a maximum of \$10,800 of the total participant wages.

Program operators are responsible for the marketing, recruitment, intake, and eligibility process. All contractors will be required to attend training in early May 2022 (provided by the WDB) on the determination of eligibility and required documentation. Contractors will be responsible for any costs associated with incorrect eligibility determinations.

Program operators will be required to demonstrate significant coordination with community partners, social service agencies, and with other summer program providers in the recruitment, screening, and placement of program participants. Coordination includes a common summer employment program application for all WDB funded providers, joint recruitment activities, and common marketing materials. Contractors agree to identify the Tompkins County Workforce Development Board as the funding source of the Summer Youth Employment Program in news releases, media programs, letterhead, webpage, brochures, flyers, program materials, etc., including use of the Tompkins Workforce Development Board logo. A meeting for program providers will be convened in May 2022 to share program participants and workshops to maximize resources.

The WDB is committed to providing employment opportunities to underserved populations. Upon review of submitted proposals and before contract signing, the WDB will negotiate goals with providers regarding the number of youths served, number of

Commented [A1]: This is a local guideline. OTDA will allow stipends, see note below. Only requirement is that the stipend be a least minimum wage/hourly rate.

Commented [A2]: Add in formalized process

minority youth served, number of foster care youth served, number of at-risk and/or homeless youth, youth with disabilities, and other aspects meeting program design goals.

PROGRAM ELEMENTS

<u>Participant Orientation</u> The program must provide each youth participant a thorough overview of basic employment information, expectations at the employer's work site, safety measures, time and attendance requirements, emergency contact information, and their summer youth employment program counselor/advisor contact information. Providers must maintain documentation that ALL youth attended an orientation to the summer youth employment program prior to their start date.

<u>Supervisor Orientation</u> The program must provide each worksite supervisor with an orientation to program goals, time and attendance requirements, what to do if a youth is injured on the job, supervisor expectations, and their summer youth employment program counselor/advisor contact information. Providers must maintain documentation that supervisors were provided an orientation to the summer youth employment program prior to the youth's start date. In cases where there are multiple departments within an agency designated as a worksite then orientations must be documented and provided to each department. Agencies will be provided a worksite agreement that has the minimum requirements for contractors. If the contractor decides to use a different agreement, the agreement must incorporate the minimum requirements.

<u>Career Exploration</u> An orientation to demand occupations and the local labor market must be provided, along with exposure to careers through such activities as site visits to employers, guest speakers, workshops, handouts spotlighting career fields, employer panels and job shadowing. Providers must maintain attendance documentation for all such activities. The identified career clusters are:

Agricultural

Business

Childcare

Computer and Information Technology

Construction

Customer Service

Education

Finance

Food Service Governmental

Healthcare

Hospitality

Library Sciences

Human Services

Maintenance

Management

Manufacturing

Office/Administration

Personal Care/Services

Retail

Social Services

Transportation

.

Additional information regarding specific demand occupations in Tompkins County can be found online at: https://www2.tompkinscountyny.gov/wdb

Work Readiness
 The program must also address career readiness skills, work maturity skills, professionalism, communication, and interpersonal skills. A complete list of the components of these skill areas is found on Page 14 of this Request for Proposals.
 Providers are required to conduct a pre- and post-assessment of skills. The format for the pre- and post-assessment requires approval of the Workforce Development Board Director.

<u>Financial Literacy</u> The program must also address financial literacy skills, including income and expenses, setting long term goals, entrepreneurship, credit and debt management, budgeting, money management and investment. <u>All youth must be provided financial literacy skill training</u>. This may be provided at orientation, during the summer as a component of scheduled workshops and activities, or a combination of both to ensure that every youth receives training.

<u>Participant Performance Evaluations</u> Participants performance evaluations will need to incorporate the skills found on Page 14. Participants must be evaluated by their worksite supervisor at least twice during the program period. Participants should have the

opportunity to review their performance evaluation with the worksite supervisor. The format for participant evaluations requires approval of the Workforce Development Board Director.

<u>Program Evaluation</u> Program must include an evaluation of the program by employers/site sponsors. At a minimum the evaluation needs to address responsiveness of staff, preparation of youth participants and suggestions for improvement. The format for employer/site sponsor evaluations requires approval of the Workforce Development Board Director.

<u>Participant Progress Notes</u> Contractors must maintain participant progress notes that at a minimum detail activities that participants were part of, document progress toward work readiness goals, document any issues or problems on the worksite or in activities and provide information on how the issues or problems were addressed.

Working Papers for Youth 14-18 Contractors are required to ensure that they have the correct working papers for all youth prior to the youth starting employment. Under no circumstances should a youth be placed on payroll without proper working papers. Special attention needs to be paid to ensure that for youth who turn 16 during the summer youth employment program that new working papers are obtained immediately upon the youth reaching the age of 16. Contractors are required to keep the original working papers of each participant on file at the agency during their employment. An additional photocopy of youth working papers should be kept at their worksite. Contractors must keep a photocopy of participant working papers in the participant file after their program participation ends to provide proof that they previously had the working papers.

MONITORING AND REPORTING FOR PROGRAM AND FISCAL COMPLIANCE

Each program year, the Tompkins County WDB conducts or contracts program and fiscal management and oversight defined as reviewing, monitoring, and evaluating program and fiscal activities undertaken with funding provided by the Workforce Development Board. This oversight results in the development of recommendations for improvement and identifies any findings related to program and fiscal responsibilities. Monitoring activities ensure that contractors are following Federal Regulations, State Regulations, and locally approved policies. The New York State Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance may also conduct program and/or fiscal monitoring.

Program monitoring consists of a review of customer files and records on the case, worksite visits and interviews with program participants, supervisors, and employers.

There are generally three areas for program review:

- Program Eligibility and all subsequent documentation
- Services/Program Activity, including youth and employer satisfaction surveys
- Adherence to labor laws, immigration work requirements, proposals submitted, the SYEP Request for Proposal and the
 program contract.

In addition, an annual financial review of each contractor program will be performed. This monitoring activity will include a review of all fiscal records, contractors cost allocation plan, vouchers submitted for payment, accounts payable, staff payroll, participant payroll, outstanding check lists and purchasing and procurement policies.

The WDB staff, WDB Board members and Youth Oversight Committee members reserve the right to periodically visit funded programs to conduct informal program evaluations including interviews with youth being served.

Programs receiving funding through this RFP process may be required to do a brief program presentation for the Youth Oversight Committee and/or full WDB during the program year. The dates of these presentations will be established during the regularly scheduled Youth Oversight Committee meetings with programs receiving prior notice of these dates.

There will be program reporting requirements that at a minimum will include:

- Weekly payroll hours/payroll reporting
- Mid-Point and Final participant numbers and demographic reporting
- Additional detail on reporting will be provided to contractors upon award

PROPOSAL EVALUATION

To be reviewed, a proposal must be complete and must comply with all requirements of this RFP. A proposal may be excluded from funding consideration for any of the following reasons:

- · Goals or outcomes that are not in accordance with objectives of this program
- Did not follow RFP guidelines, i.e.: More than 30 total pages; and/or forms not completed; and/or not meeting proposal submission deadline <u>date and time</u>.
- · Activities specifically not allowed by Federal, State, or local laws
- History of contract non-compliance or poor past or current contract performance
- Training site and facilities not in full compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

negotiations are contingent on State approval of an allocation of funds for Summer Youth Employment.

A committee of the Tompkins County Workforce Development Board will review and score proposals based on the criteria noted

below. It is the WDB's intent to notify program operators of decisions on or before March 22, 2022; however, final contract

SELECTION CRITERIA

Proposals meeting the minimum RFP requirements will be evaluated based on, but not limited to, the following criteria.

Quality of Program Design-70 points

- Describes a robust recruitment plan, per page 11, section II.B
- Has a thoroughly documented and clearly articulated plan to reach program goals and meet program intent (as outlined on page 3)
- Offers multiple opportunities for youth skill development throughout program design
- Demonstrates a high level of engagement with community partners to provide access to resources to support youth with significant barriers to employment and/or Social Emotional Learning (SEL) needs, per page 12, section II.E
- Incorporates a wide variety of placement opportunities at non-profit, for-profit and private sector employers, integrated to
 match program goals and youth needs
- Provides youth with meaningful exposure to demand occupations through a variety of methods
- Demonstrates a comprehensive method of evaluating the program by both the worksites and program participants

Demonstrated Capability-20 points

- Record of achievement in program management and financial operations
- High level of professional and technical skill/knowledge
- History of success in serving the focus population
- Has a history of collaborating with other agencies

Cost Efficiency-10 points

- · Clarity and completeness of budget detail
- · Reasonableness of program costs

TIMELINE

Action Item	Date	
RFP Issue	Wednesday, January 19, 2022	
Optional Technical Assistance Office Hours	Thursday, February 17, 2022; 1:30pm-3:30pm	
Deadline for Questions	Thursday, February 24, 2022	
Completed Proposal Due	Thursday, March 3, 2022 by 1:00 p.m.	
**Award Notification (anticipated)	Tuesday, March 22, 2022	
**Program Start-Up and Contract Dates	May 1, 2022 – September 30, 2022	

Commented [A3]: List here again the priorities of what we actually mean. It is redundant, but drives home need to focus. Maybe we can change the rating scale to be more specific or doe points for specifically not being specific enough? (Just an idea)

Commented [A4]: Again, can be be very specific about what they needs to be?

Commented [A5]: Looks at ways that can deduct points from this for not being specific enough... I'm not sure what that would look like, but a way to get feedback to them so they understand exactly why we took points away. I know Shannon has done a great job of talking to them, but maybe we need to bring them in for a Q&A session before they fill this out to understand exactly what we mean?

**Final contract amounts are contingent upon the New York State budget passing and the NYS Office of Temporary and Disability notifying the Workforce Development Board of the final amount awarded to Tompkins County. Unfortunately, a later award and start date is possible.

PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS/DEADLINE

 $Organizations \ wishing \ to \ receive \ the \ program \ specifications \ are \ asked \ to \ visit \ the \ Tompkins \ County \ website \ at: \\ \underline{www.tompkins.countyny.gov/purchase}$

Proposals in response to this RFP <u>MUST BE RECEIVED NO LATER THAN 1:00pm. ON THURSDAY, MARCH 3, 2022.</u>

Submission of Proposals

- 1. Bids and any other required documents shall be submitted online through the Tompkins County website at: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase and selecting 'Open Solicitations'. This will take you to BidNetDirect where the RFP information is posted for the public. Bidders who do not have, or cannot obtain, internet access must contact the Purchasing Division via email (preferred), purchase@tompkins-co.org or by telephone, (607) 274-5500 for further instructions.
- 2. Responses must be uploaded and responded to no later than the date and time indicated in the RFP procedure section above.
- 3. Tompkins County reserves the right to reject any or all bids/proposals in whole or in part, to waive any and all informalities, and to disregard all non-conforming, non-responsive or conditional bids/proposals.

QUESTIONS

Questions regarding this Request for Proposals may be submitted via BidNetDirect until 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 24, 2022. Answers will be posted on the BidNetDirect website as questions are received.

Proposal Instructions

OVERVIEW OF PROPOSAL CONTENT

Proposals submitted in response to this RFP must contain the following items, presented in the order indicated.

I. Proposal Summary Form

II. Program Design Narrative

III. Program Management Narrative

IV. Budget Form

V. Additional Required Forms (Attachment A)

Proposals are limited to a total of **30 pages including any forms**. Submissions of more than **30 pages will not be reviewed**.

Preparation Guidelines

- Proposal should be prepared using standard margins and using 12-point font. Text lines may be single-spaced. All pages in
 the proposal package must be numbered. Be sure that the proposed program clearly supports achievement of the goals and
 objectives outlined in this RFP.
- Be specific when describing the elements of the program design and delivery.
- Refer to program features that are definitive, not to those that are only possibilities.
- Include only information directly related to the program and its participants.
- Whenever possible, quantify minimum standards, hours of services, and other critical components of the program.
- Be concise and avoid extraneous references and unnecessary detail.

Proposal Format and Content Requirements

I. PROPOSAL SUMMARY FORM

Complete the one-page summary form attached to this RFP (pg. 20). It must appear as the first page of the proposal.

II. PROGRAM DESIGN NARRATIVE

A. Detailed Overview

- Provide a detailed program timeline that includes staffing, intake, eligibility, outreach, orientation, and participants start and end dates
- Describe the training activities that will be provided and the associated number of hours for each activity as well as a total number of hours of training that will be provided and include them in the timeline referenced above.
- 3. Describe the Financial Literacy training activity(ies) that will be provided and the associated number of hours for this training and include them in the timeline referenced above.
- 4. Describe the employment or work experience component of the program. Provide a description of the jobs and job sites. Indicate how new work sites will be developed and how participants will be matched with jobs. List anticipated employers involved with the program and how they will be oriented to their roles and responsibilities.

B. Recruitment, Outreach & Retention Plan

- Describe the strategies that will be used to recruit eligible participants. Indicate what strategies will be used to encourage
 the participation of families in receipt of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families.
- 2. Describe the method for recruiting underrepresented populations.
- 3. Describe how you will address barriers (transportation needs, technology needs, etc.) the participants may have.

C. Staffing and Collaboration

- 1. List all staff positions that will work on the program and describe the program responsibilities that will be assigned to each. Indicate the percent of each person's time that will be devoted to the program, and if applicable, to each of the various responsibilities. Describe the process that will be used to select and train program staff. Include a copy of the organizational chart of the entity submitting the proposal.
- If the program will involve linkages with other organizations, please provide evidence of effective working relationships and provide a name and contact information for the organization. Briefly describe the specific roles and responsibilities of each entity.

D. Attendance Policy

Attach a copy of the program's attendance policy, which must include consequences, system for enforcement, and
assistance available to participants in addressing and resolving work related issues or problems with attendance.

E. Supportive Services

- Describe the types of counseling or other special supportive services that will be provided by the program to help participants who develop or reveal special needs during participation (e.g., difficulties resulting from socio-economic problems, family issues, drug or alcohol abuse).
- Indicate if supportive service referrals will be provided when needed and explain how that will be accomplished (e.g. job coaching, mental health counseling, etc.).
- Describe process for training and supporting employers in working with youth with multiple barriers, including working with youth with disabilities, supportive service needs, etc.
- Describe how Social Emotional Learning (SEL) competencies will be incorporated into everyday practice. SEL
 competencies include: Self-Awareness, Self-Management, Social Awareness, Relationship Skills and Responsible
 Decision-Making.

F. Evaluation

1. Describe how the participant will be evaluated by the worksite and when this will occur.

Commented [A6]: Same as above comment, maybe a minimal percentage of businesses owned by people of color? Can we includ DEI training here, some focus on Cultural Humility for those staff members working with this population?

Commented [A7]: Highlight the focus on new employment opportunities at Businesses owned by People of Color.

Commented [A8]: Flush this out to specifically outline who w mean by underrepresented populations?

Commented [A9]: This is difficult because these are selfdisclosed, right? But maybe there is a way to provide a list of community resources that they must include? I know that working with the employers to truly understand the disabilities of the youth they are working with, was an issue I heard about this past year. I know some of was done, but in maybe a deeper context.

- 2. Describe how the program will be evaluated by the agency/businesses that are worksite sponsors and by the program participants and when this will occur.
- 3. Explain the procedure that will be used if a problem or grievance arises with a participant and indicate who will be responsible for handling these grievances.

III. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT NARRATIVE

A. Agency Experience/Capability

- 1. Provide an overview of the proposing agency and explain how this program fits into the agency's overall operation.
- Detail how your agency will respond if decisions regarding funding are not made until late in the program preparation
 period. Provide an estimate of how quickly your agency will be prepared with appropriate staffing for conducting
 recruitment, intake and eligibility.
- Identify any current or recent programs the agency has operated that are like the proposed program. Provide the dates and results of these programs.

B. Financial Record Keeping

- 1. Describe the agency's financial management system and indicate any unresolved audit questions with the agency that are related to government-funded programs.
- Identify the staff position that will be responsible for the disbursement of funds and the staff position that will be responsible for the receipt of funds.

C. Participant Wage Check Procedure

- Describe how time will be recorded and verified. Attach a sample time sheet. All timesheets must document that a lunch period was provided (if required).
- Indicate how often participants will be paid and who will be responsible for generating the paychecks. Note who will distribute the paychecks, how that will be accomplished, and what will be done if the participant is not available to accept the check.

NOTE: All proposals must have a procedure in place for participants to sign for their paycheck. Participants may authorize someone else to receive their paycheck, however, there needs to be a signed and dated authorization for each paycheck in place. Agencies must retain that authorization and have individuals authorized by the participant sign for the paycheck.

D. Quality Control and Monitoring

- Indicate who will monitor and assure internal compliance with each of the following and how often each will be reviewed:
 - General contract requirements
 - Completeness and accuracy of participant files
 - Quality and frequency of Individual Participant Progress Reports
 - Worksite Compliance with New York State Labor Laws
 - Fiscal records including ensuring that participant payroll checks are reviewed
 - Timesheets (Note: All proposals must indicate a system for agency review of time records to ensure accuracy and completeness)
 - Outstanding participant payroll check reports are monitored to ensure checks are cashed

IV. BUDGET FORM

Prepare a program budget using the budget form that is attached to this RFP. Unless a waiver has been issued for a program, at least 65% of the overall budget must be utilized for participant costs. Participant costs are defined as participant wage and fringe, transportation, clothing/uniforms required by employer, and training supplies.

Commented [A10]: We may be able to implement ability to provide STIPEND, instead of PAYCHECK, to allow orgs without the admin capacities to better provide this programming.

Commented [A11R10]: I love this! But I also think that there is value in getting a paycheck. Do we think that this might increase the ability to have new placements?

Commented [A12]: Note re: exceptions

Include a narrative that explains each budget line item for your budget request. Your budget must be consistent with your proposed activities, and your Budget Narrative must justify your proposed expenditures. If the agency operates multiple programs a method of allocating costs must be identified for budget line items. All costs included in the budget must be directly related to the SYEP grant.

- Please explain how wage and fringe for participants were budgeted, assumptions made, and calculations used in the estimates.
- Costs associated with the purchase of equipment or furniture is prohibited.

V. REQUIRED FORMS

Requested documentation forms (Attachment A) must appear at the end of the proposal.

WORK READINESS SKILL GOALS

Career Readiness Skills

- Making Career Decisions
- Using Labor Market Information
- Preparing Resumes
- Completing Applications
- Interviewing/Writing Follow-up Letters

Work Maturity Skills

- Maintaining Regular Attendance Being Consistently Punctual
- Exhibiting Appropriate Attitude/Behaviors
- Present Appropriate Appearance
- Demonstrating Good Interpersonal Relations Completing Tasks Effectively

Communication and Interpersonal Skills

- Speaking Listening
- Interacting with co-workers
- Cultural Humility

Commented [A13]: I think it makes sense to include some sort of Culture Humility. Working with different populations sensitivity, something that would be a needed soft skill.

SUMMER YOUTH EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM CONTACTS

Counties that border Tompkins

Cayuga County
Jim Alberici
Cayuga County Employment and Training
315-253-1535
jalberici@cayugacounty.us

Chemung County
Laura Zern
Chemung County Youth Bureau
607-737-2907
lzurn@co.cheming.ny.us

Cortland County
Amy Buggs
Cortland Works Career Center
607-756-7585
abuggs@cortland-co.org

Schuyler County
Adam Lawton, Youth Program Coordinator
Schuyler County Youth Bureau
607-535-6236
alawton@co.schuyler.ny.us

Seneca County
Ryan DeVay, Employment and Training Youth Coordinator 315-539-1901
rdevay@co.seneca.ny.us

Tioga County Youth Bureau
Natalie Thompson, Youth Bureau Director
607-687-8300
natalie.thompson@dfa.state.ny.us

DISQUALIFICATION:

- The County reserves the right to refuse to issue a Contract to a prospective vendor should such vendor be in default for any of the following reasons:
 - (a) Failure to comply with any pre-qualification regulations of the County, if such regulations were cited, or otherwise included in the specifications as a requirement for responding.
 - (b) Contractor's default under previous contracts with the County.
 - (c) Contractor's unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the County.
- 2. Responses received from Contractors who have previously failed to complete contracts within the time required, or who have previously performed similar work in an unsatisfactory manner, may be rejected. A response may be rejected if the Contractor cannot show that it has the necessary ability, plant and equipment to commence the work at the time prescribed and thereafter to perform and complete the work at the rate or time specified. A response may be rejected if the Contractor is already obligated for the performance of other work which would delay the commencement, performance or completion of the work if the Contractor is not able to demonstrate the ability to fulfill the requirements of the proposal in a manner agreed upon by the County and the Contractor.
- 3. Tompkins County reserves the right to reject any proposal if the information submitted by, or investigation of, such Contractor fails to satisfy the County that such Contractor is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the Contract and to complete the work contemplated therein.
- 4. Proposals will be considered irregular and shall be subject to rejection for the following reasons:
 - (a) If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities of any kind which make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous.

Method of Award:

The County reserves the right to award the Contract to the Respondent who submits the proposal that proves to be in the best interest of the County. The County has the sole discretion and reserves the right to cancel this request, reject any/all responses, to waive any/all informalities and/or irregularities if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the County to do so. A notice of Contract award shall not be binding upon the County until the Contract has been fully executed by both parties.

Contract Extension:

The County agrees, under the General Municipal Laws of New York State to allow all authorized users who wish to utilize any Contract awarded as a result of this solicitation to do so. However, it is understood that the extension of such Contract is at the discretion of the Respondent and the Respondent is only bound to the Contract between itself and the County.

Term of Contract:

The term of Contract shall be specified within the detailed specifications.

Contract Award:

The Contract award, if any, will be made within 30 days of due date. The Contract shall be awarded to the Respondent who submits the proposal that proves to be in the best interest of the County.

The resulting Contract will incorporate Tompkins County Contract Terms and Conditions, this RFP, any addendum, and Bidder's response thereto, all additional agreements and stipulations, and the results of any final negotiations will constitute the final Contract. The terms and conditions as contained in the Contract for services shall take precedence over any conflicting terms.

Payment Terms:

Payment terms to be negotiated. Interest penalties to the County will not be allowed. Tompkins County is not subject to

Federal, State, or Local taxes.

Non-Appropriation Clause:

In accordance with New York State General Municipal Law, the County will not be liable for any purchases or contracts for goods or services for which funding is not available. As a result, the Respondent agrees to hold the County harmless for any contracts let for which funding either does not currently exist, or for which funding has been removed prior to the authorization to proceed. Should it become necessary for the County to cancel a project after the order to proceed has been issued, the County will only be liable for, and the Respondent agrees, to only assess those financial damages that it can prove to have incurred as a result of the Contract termination.

Indemnification and Insurance:

- The successful Bidder shall release, waive, indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the COUNTY and its officers, employees, agents and elected officials from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, or judgements, including but not limited to, losses, costs, expenses, penalties, or other damages or liability brought against the COUNTY and its officers, employees, agents and elected officials for injury or death to any person or persons or damage to property arising out of the performance of this Agreement, any negligent or intentional act or omission of the successful Proposer, its employees, subcontractors or agents with the exception of actions and claims arising out of the negligence of the COUNTY. The indemnification will survive the term of the Agreement whether it is terminated or expired.
- The successful Bidder will be required to procure and maintain, at its own expense, the minimum limits of insurance as described in Attachment H or as required by law, whichever is greater.
- No work shall be commenced under the Contract until the successful Bidder has delivered to the County proof of issuance of all policies of insurance required by the Contract. If at any time, any of said policies shall expire or become unsatisfactory to the County, the successful Bidder shall promptly obtain a new policy and submit proof of insurance of the same to the County for approval. Upon failure of the successful Bidder to furnish, deliver and maintain such insurance as above provided, the Contract may, at the election of the County, be forthwith declared suspended, discontinued or terminated. Failure of the successful Bidder to procure and maintain any required insurance, shall not relieve the successful Bidder from any liability under the Contract, nor shall the insurance requirements be construed to conflict with the obligations of the successful Bidder concerning indemnification.

Training:

If required, training shall take place during regular business hours. Training shall be provided until all County personnel involved in the Contract are adequately trained.

Contract Re-Assignment:

The Respondent shall not re-assign any portion of the any contract that results from this solicitation without the express written consent of the County.

Governing Law:

Any resulting Agreement and any controversies arising hereunder, shall be interpreted, governed, and construed under the laws of the State of New York. The Bidder consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of, and venue in, the State and Federal Courts within Tompkins County, New York. Any such Agreement is binding on all successors, heirs, executors, administrators, representatives, and assigns of all the Bidder/Contractor.

Interpretation:

In the event of any discrepancy, disagreement or ambiguity among the documents which comprise this RFP, and/or, the Agreement (between the County and the successful Proposer) and its incorporated documents, the documents shall be given preference in the following order to interpret and to resolve such discrepancy, disagreement or ambiguity: 1) the Agreement; 2) the RFP; 3) the Contractor's proposal.

Remedy for Breach:

In the event of a breach by Contractor, Contractor shall pay to the County all direct and consequential damages caused by such breach, including, but not limited to, all sums expended by the County to procure a substitute Contractor to satisfactorily complete the contract work, together with the County's own costs incurred in procuring a substitute Contractor.

Conflict of Interest:

No officer or employee of the County shall participate in any decision relating to the Contract which affects their personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which they are directly or indirectly interested.

New York State Sexual Harassment Legislation:

By submitting a response to this solicitation, the Bidder hereby represents that they comply with the New York State Sexual Harassment Legislation and that said Bidder has implemented a written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees.

Living Wage:

Tompkins County must consider the wage levels and benefits, particularly health care, provided by Contractors when awarding bids or negotiating contracts, and to encourage the payment of livable wages whenever practical and reasonable.

If Contractor certifies on Tompkins County Livable Wage attestation (Attachment G) that its employees directly providing services outlined in the Contract are NOT paid a living wage, the department contract representative may have a conversation with the Contractor to understand the cost implications of achieving the living wage threshold, whether there are structural barriers impacting the ability to pay the living wage, plans to improve wages over time, generous fringe benefits, or other considerations that should be applied when addressing the question of whether it is practical or reasonable to meet the living wage threshold including the cost required to bring the Contract to the living wage threshold.

Regulatory Compliance:

The Respondent agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and regulations governing the provision of goods and services under this Contract. To the extent that federal funds are provided to the Respondent under this Contract, the Respondent agrees that it will comply with all applicable Federal laws and regulations, including but not limited to those laws and regulations under which the Federal funds were authorized.

Further, Respondent agrees to comply with the County's Compliance Plan regarding Federal and State fraud and abuse laws; the Compliance Plan can be reviewed at www.tompkins-co.org or a copy can be obtained from Tompkins County Administration, 125 East Court Street, Ithaca, NY 14850.

Respondents that are providers of healthcare services certify that the Respondent, and all employees, directors, officers, and subcontractors of the Respondent, are not "excluded individuals or entities" under Federal and/or New York State statues, rules and regulations, to determine if any of them are on or have been added to the exclusion list.

The Respondent shall promptly notify the County if any employee, director, officer of subcontractor is on or has been added to the exclusion list. The County reserves the right to immediately cancel this Contract, at no penalty to the County, if any employee, director, officer or subcontractor is on or has been added to the exclusion list.

Contractors shall promptly notify the County if any employee, director, officer or subcontractors is on or has been added to the exclusion list. The County reserves the right to immediately cancel an Agreement, at no penalty to the County, if any employee, director, officer or subcontractors is on or has been added to the exclusion list.

By submitting a response to a Request for Proposals, you are attesting to the fact that you and/or the provider, which you represent, have not been sanctioned nor excluded by any of the aforementioned entities.

CERTIFICATION

Signature and Date

Bidders must certify that they will comply with the following requirements if funding is awarded as a result of this RFP. All awardees of funds shall:

- 1. Sign an Anti-discrimination Clause and comply with all Equal Opportunity Laws, including the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990;
- 2. Sign a "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters," indicating that they have not been debarred or suspended from participating in federal programs because of crimes, fraud, or other serious violations of federal laws and regulations;
- 3. Sign a certification regarding lobbying, indicating that no Federal funds will be used to attempt to influence any Federal officer, employee, or elected official;
- 4. Sign a certification that they provide a drug-free workplace and have a written drug-free workplace policy;
- 5. Sign a certification that they have and have implemented a written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees;
- 6. Agree to provide training without any duplication of costs (charging both SYEP?? and another funding source for the same expense);
- 7. Provide a copy of their most recent financial audit before Contract execution;
- 8. Agree to allow on-site inspections and audits of any records related to their programs.

I certify that	(name of bidder organization)
will comply with the above requirements.	
Name	
Title	

Tompkins County Request for Proposal – Submission Instructions

Respondents shall submit their proposal response per the instructions below. Respondents who do not follow these guidelines may have their proposals rejected as incomplete or non-responsive.

- Respondents shall read all documents contained in this specification package and complete all sections and attachments. Failure to do so does not excuse respondent from abiding by all instructions, terms or conditions.
- Responses shall be submitted to the location and in the format indicated in the specifications no later than the date and time indicated.
- Respondents must submit their questions regarding any portion of the specifications by posting them on the Q&A tab found in the solicitation or in writing to theemail address provided in the specifications by the date provided. Answers will be provided no later than five (5) days prior to the Proposal due date.
- The County reserves the right to amend the specifications prior to the due date by written "Addenda". It is the Respondent's responsibility to ascertain whether any addenda have been issued prior to submitting their proposal.
- Bids and any other required documents shall be submitted online through the Tompkins County website at: <u>www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase</u> and selecting 'Open Solicitations'.
- Respondents shall submit <u>all</u> forms that require signatures with their proposal response.
- All responses submitted become the property of the County and are subject to Public Information Policy.
- This invitation to respond does not commit the County to award a Contract, nor shall the County be responsible for any cost or expense that may be incurred by the Respondent in preparing and submitting their response or any cost incurred prior to the execution of a Contract.
- The County reserves the right to cancel the Contract without cause with a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice. Termination or cancellation of the Contract will not relieve the Respondent of any obligations or liabilities resulting from any acts committed by the Respondent prior to the termination of the Contract. The Respondent may cancel the Contract with one hundred-twenty (120) days written notice.

Submission of Proposals:

- 1. Responses to this RFP and any other required documents shall be submitted through the Tompkins County website at: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase (see instructions below).
- 2. Responses must be uploaded and responded to no later than the date and time indicated.
- 3. Tompkins County reserves the right to reject any or all bids/proposals in whole or in part, to waive any and all informalities, and to disregard all non-conforming, non-responsive or conditional bids/proposals to make the award in a manner deemed to be in the best interest of the County, and to correct any award erroneously made as the result of a clerical error on the part of the County.

ATTACHMENT A

Online Bid Submission Instructions:

Bids and any other required documents shall be submitted online through the Tompkins County website at: www.tompkinscountyny.gov/purchase and selecting 'Open Solicitations'. This will take you to BidNetDirect where the RFP information is posted for the public. Bidders who do not have, or cannot obtain, internet access must contact the Purchasing Division via email (preferred), purchase@tompkins-co.org or by telephone, (607) 274-5500 for further instructions

COUNTY OF TOMPKINS GENERAL CONDITIONS

AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION

NAME OF RESPONDER:		PHONE NO.:			
BUSIN	ESS ADDRESS:	EMAIL:			
I hereby attest that I am the person responsible within my firm for the final decision as to the price(s) and amount of the proposal, or if not, that I have written authorization, enclosed herewith, from that person to make the statements set out below on their behalf and on behalf of my company.					
I furthe	r attest that:				
1.	The prices in this bid/proposal have been arrived at independently				
2.	agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition with any other Contractor, Responder or potential Bidder; and Neither the price(s), nor the amount of this bid/proposal, have been disclosed to any other firm or person who is a Responder or potential Responder on this project, and will not be so disclosed prior to bid/proposal opening; and				
3.					
4.					
5.					
6. 7·	 person to refrain from responding to this RFP or to submit a complementary bid/proposal on this project; and My company has not accepted or been promised any subcontract or agreement regarding the sale of materials or services to any company or person, and has not been promised or paid cash or anything of value by and company or person, whether in connection with this or any project, in consideration for my company submitting a complementary bid/proposal or agreeing to do so on this project; and have made a diligent inquiry of all members, officers, employees, and agents of my company with responsibilities relating to the preparation, approval or submission of my company's proposal on this project and have been advised by each of them that he or she has not participated in any communication, consultation, discussion, agreement, collusion act or other conduct inconsistent with any statements and representations made in this affidavit. By submission of this proposal, I certify that I have read, am familiar with, and will comply with any and all 				
The per	segments of these specifications. son signing this proposal, under the penalties of perjury, affirms the	truth thereof.			
Signatu	re & Company Position:				
Print Name & Company Position:					
Company Name:					
Date Si	Date Signed				

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

During the performance of this Contract, (the Contractor) hereby agrees as follows:

- The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment for any of the following: race, creed, color, ethnicity, military service, marital status, disability, sexual preference, perceived gender, national origin, or status as an ex-offender, and will take affirmative action to ensure that they are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination. Such action shall be taken with reference, but not be limited, to recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training or retraining, including apprenticeship and on-the-job training.
- The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has or is bound by a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the State Commissioner for Human Rights, advising such labor union or representative of the Contractor's agreement under clauses (a) through (f) hereinafter called "non-discrimination clauses". If the Contractor was directed to do so by the contracting agency as part of the bid or negotiation of this Contract, the Contractor shall request such labor union or representative to furnish him with as written statement that such labor union or representative either will affirmatively cooperate, within the limits of its legal and contractual authority, in the implementation of the policy and provisions of these non-discrimination clauses or that it consents and agrees that recruitment, employment and the terms and conditions of employment under this Contract shall be in accordance with the purposes and provisions of these non-discrimination clauses. If such labor union or representative fails or refuses to comply with such a request that it furnish such a statement, the Contractor shall promptly notify the State Commission for Human Rights of such failure or refusal.
- The Contractor will post and keep posted in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
 employment, notices to be provided by the State Commission for Human Rights setting forth the substance of
 the provisions of clauses (a) and (b) and such provisions of the State's and local Tompkins County Laws against
 discrimination as the State Commission for Human Rights shall determine.
- The Contractor will state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, that all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color or national origin.
- The Contractor will comply with the provisions of Sections 291-299 of the Executive Law and the Civil Rights Law, will furnish all information and reports deemed necessary by the State Commission for Human Rights under these non-discrimination clauses and such sections of the Executive Law, and will permit access to his books, records and accounts by the State Commission for Human Rights, the Attorney General and the Industrial Commissioner for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with these non-discrimination clauses and such sections of the Executive Law and Civil Rights Law.

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE continued...

This Contract may be forthwith cancelled, terminated or suspended, in whole or in part, by the contracting agency upon the basis of a finding made by the State Commission for Human Rights that the Contractor may be declared ineligible for future contracts made by or on behalf of the State or a public authority or agency of the State, until he satisfies the State Commission for Human Rights that he has established and is carrying out a program in conformity with the provisions of these non-discrimination clauses. Such finding shall be made by the State Commission for Human Rights after conciliation efforts by the Commission have failed to achieve compliance with these non-discrimination clauses and after a verified complaint has been filed with the Commission, notice thereof has been given to the Contractor and opportunity has been afforded him to be heard publicly before three members of the Commission. Such sanctions may be imposed, and remedies invoked independently of or in addition to sanctions and remedies otherwise provided by law. The Contractor will include the provisions of clauses (a) through (f) in every subcontract or purchase order in such a manner that such provisions be performed within the State of New York. The Contractor will take such action in enforcing such provisions of such subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may direct, including sanctions or remedies for non-compliance. If the Contractor becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the contracting agency, the Contractor shall promptly so notify the Attorney General, requesting him to intervene and protect the interests of the State of New York.

ENERAL CONDITIONS ACCEPTED B	Y
irm:	
y:	
ate:	
itle:	

COUNTY OF TOMPKINS GENERAL CONDITIONS BIDDER'S STATEMENT ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT

IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEW YORK STATE FINANCE LAW §139—I

In accordance with State Finance Law §139-l, which generally prohibits the County from entering into contracts pursuant to the bid process with persons who fail to submit a certification affirming compliance with New York Labor Law §201-g, the Bidder submits the following certification under the penalty of perjury:

By submission of this bid, each Bidder and each person signing on behalf of any Bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that the Bidder has and has implemented a written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees. Such policy shall, at a minimum, meet the requirements of Section 201-g of the Labor Law.

County, New York				
Dated:	, 20			
Name of Bidd	er			
Signature of A	authorized Official			
Printed or Typ	ed Name of Official and Title			
Sworn to befo	re me this			
day	of ,			

Attachment A - Contractor's Representation - Livable Wage Policy

<u>Livable Wage Policy:</u> By policy, Tompkins County must "consider the wage levels and benefits, particularly health care, provided by Contractors when awarding bids or negotiating contracts, and to encourage the payment of livable wages whenever practical and reasonable."

Paying the living wage rate to all employees directly involved in providing the contracted County service is not mandatory. However, the attainment of a broadly applied living wage is a County goal and is therefore an important consideration applied by the County when reviewing contract proposals.

The Current Living Wage: The Living Wage in Tompkins County is computed by the Alternatives Federal Credit Union and is currently \$15.32 per hour. Prospective Contractors providing health insurance for employees may qualify for a lower Living Wage if the amount that employees are required to pay for that coverage is less than \$0.75/hour. The rate will be adjusted again in May 2023.

Requirement of All Contractors: As a part of its proposal or contract representations, a prospective service Contractor must advise the County whether it will pay the AFCU livable wage rate to all Covered Employees directly involved in the provision of the contracted service, including employees of any subcontractor engaged to assist in providing the service.

Additionally, Contractors are asked to estimate the number of employees who will be directly involved in the provision of the contracted service. If not all employees are going to be paid the Living Wage, Contractors are asked to estimate how many full-time, and how many part-time, covered employees will NOT be paid the living wage.

<u>Covered Employees</u> include all full- and part-time employees, other than those Excluded Employees described below, who are directly involved in the provision of the contracted service, including employees of sub-contractors engaged to assist in providing the service.

Excluded Employees are:

- Employees under the age of 18
- Seasonal or temporary employees (90 days or less)
- Employees in a probationary status (90 days or less)
- Those employed in a sheltered or supported work environment
- Employees participating in a limited-duration (90 day) job training program
- Employees participating in an academic work-study or academic internship program
- Volunteers
- Employees participating in mandated welfare-to-work programs
- Employees paid pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement

Contractor's Living Wage Representation
1. Approximately how many Covered Employees, including employees of any subcontractor involved in providing the service, will be involved in the provision of the contracted service?
2. Will all Covered Employees, including employees of any subcontractors directly involved in the provision of County services, be paid at least the living wage? Yes No
3. If the answer is "No", approximately how many covered employees will NOT be paid at the living wage? Full-time Part-time
Contractor Name:

If you answered "Yes" to the Living Wage Representation and are awarded the County Contract, you will be expected to maintain all employees directly involved in the provision of services under this Contract at or above the living wage as of the time of execution of the Contract for the duration of the Contract.

If you answered "No," your response will be among the considerations applied by the County in making its Contract award. As a part of Contract negotiations, the County may request additional information from you regarding the basis of this response.

Tompkins County Hold Harmless and Insurance Requirements

Contractor/Subcontractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Tompkins County and its officers, employees, agents and elected officials from and against any and all claims and actions brought against Tompkins County and its officers, employees, agents and elected officials for injury or death to any person or persons or damage to property arising out of the performance of this Contract by the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors or agents except all actions and claims arising out of the negligence of Tompkins County. The Contractor/Subcontractor shall maintain the following minimum limits of insurance or as required by law, whichever is greater.

A.) Workers' Compensation and New York Disability

<u>Workers' Compensation</u>
Statutory coverage complying with NYS Workers' Compensation Law Section 57 General Municipal Law Section 125, Contractor must submit one of the following:

CE-200 - Certification of Attestation of Exemption form NYS Workers' Compensation and/or Disability Benefits Coverage available at http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/main/forms/AllForms.jsp, OR

CE-105.2 - Certification of NYS Workers' Compensation Insurance (U-26.3 f or State Insurance Fund version), OR

SI-12 - Certificate of NYS Workers' Compensation Self Insurance, OR

GSI-105.2 - Certificate of NYS Workers' Compensation Group Self-Insurance Employers' Liability \$1,000,000

Disability Benefits Requirements

Statutory coverage complying with NYS Workers' Compensation Law Section 220 (8) under General Municipal Law Section 125, Contractor must submit one of the following:

CE-200 - Certification of Attestation of Exemption from NYS Workers' Compensation and/or Disability Benefits Coverage, OR

DB120.1 - Certificate of Disability Benefits Insurance, OR DB155 - Certificate of Disability Self-Insurance

NOTE: Proof of NYS Workers' Compensation and NYS Disability Benefits must be provided on NYS forms as listed above (complete information available at http://www.wcb.ny.gov/content/main/forms/AllForms.jsp or Bureau of Compliance at (866) 546-9322).

Commercial General Liability (CGL) including, contractual, independent contractors, B.) products/completed operations

Each Occurrence	\$1,000,000
General Aggregate	\$2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate	\$2,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury	\$1,000,000
Fire Damage Legal	\$50,000
Medical Expense	\$5,000

- If the CGL contains a General Aggregate Limit, such General Aggregate shall apply separately to each project.
- Contractor/Subcontractor shall maintain CGL coverage for itself and all additional insureds for the duration of the project and maintain Completed Operations coverage for itself and each additional insured for at least 3 years after completion of the work.
- Policy may not contain any exclusions relating to NY Labor Law or municipal work.
- It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor that the insurance requirements specified above, contemplate the use of occurrence liability forms.
- Tompkins County and its officers, employees, agents and elected officials are to be included as Additional Insured's on a primary and non-contributory basis.
- Contractor, Owner, and all other parties required of the Contractor shall be included as Additional Insured included Completed Operations on the CGL, using ISO Additional Insured Endorsement CG2010 (11/85) or CG2010 (04/13)

AND CG2037 (04/13) or CG2037 (04/13) AND CG2038 (04/13) or an endorsement providing equivalent coverage to the additional insureds. This insurance for the additional insureds shall be as broad asthe coverage provided for the named insured Contractor/Subcontractor. It shall apply as Primary and non-contributing Insurance before any other insurance or self-insurance, including any deductible, maintained by, or provided to, the additional insured.

C.) Commercial Umbrella

\$1,000,000

- o Policy may not contain any exclusions relating to NY Labor Law or municipal work.
- Tompkins County and its officers, employees, agents, and elected officials are to be included as

Additional Insureds on a primary and non-contributory basis.

- o Umbrella coverage must include as insureds all entities that are additional insureds on the CGL.
- Umbrella coverage for such additional insureds shall apply as primary before any other insurance or self- insurance, including any deductible, maintained by, or provided to, the additional insured other than the CGL, Auto Liability and Employers Liability coverages maintained by the Contractor/Subcontractor.

D.) Business Auto Coverage

Liability for Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Autos \$1,000,000 CSL or \$500,000 Per Person BI \$1,000,000 Per Accident BI \$250,000 PD Split Limits

E.) Professional Liability OR Errors and Omissions Liability

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence \$2,000,000 Annual Aggregate

F.) Waiver of Subrogation

Contractor/Subcontractor waives all rights against Tompkins County and its officers, employees, agents, and elected officials for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by commercial general liability, commercial umbrella liability, business auto liability or workers compensation and employer's liability insurance maintained per requirements stated above.

All insurance shall be written with insurance carriers licensed by New York State and have an A.M. Best's Key Ratingno lower than "A – X". Proof of insurance shall be provided on the Acord Certificate of Insurance, Acord 25 (03/2016),or insurance company certificate. All insurance policies and Certificates shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under the policies will not be canceled, allowed to expire, or materially changed (except for non-payments) until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County. All Certificates must be signed by a licensed agent or authorized representative of the insurance company. Certificates of Insurance shall be submitted with the RFP, bid, and/or signed agreement.

Tompkins County Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire

VENDOR IS: □ PRIME CONTRACTOR	□ SUB-CONTRACTOR	
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER :	WEBSITE ADDRESS:	
VENDOR'S LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:	D/B/A – DOING BUISNESS AS: (if applicable)	
ADDRESS OF PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS:	ADDRESS OF PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS IN A STATE (if different):	IEW YORK
TELEPHONE:	TELEPHONE:	
FAX:	FAX:	
AUTHORIZED CONTACT FOR THIS QUESTIONNAIRE: NAME: TITLE: TELEPHONE: EMAIL:		
LIST ALL OF THE VENDOR'S PRINCIPLE OWNERS:		
NAME:	TITLE:	
NAME:	TITLE:	
A DETAILED EXPLANATION IS RQUIRED FOR EACH QUE ANO ATTACHMENT TO THE COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE AID THE COUNTY IN MAKING A DETERMINATION OF VE TO MATCH THE QUESTION NUMBER.	E. YOU MUST PROVIDE ADEQUATE DETAILS OR DOCU ENDOR RESPONSIBILITY. YOU MUST NUMBER EACH RI	JMENTS TO ESPONSE
	E PAST FIVE (5) YEARS, ANY OTHER BUSINESS NAME, all other business name(s), Federal Employer Identification Nursewere/are in use. Explain the relationship to the vendor.	
□ YES	□ NO	
INCLUDING PRINCIPAL OWNERS AND OFFICERS SERVED AS: a) An elected or appointed public official or officer? List each individual's name, business title, the name service. b) An officer of any political party organization in Tor	e of the organization and position elected or appointed to, and a	AVE dates of
CONSULTING CAPACITY, PRINCIPAL OWNER(S), PERSON INVOLVED IN THE BIDDING OR CONTR.	federal authority in connection with a contract or contracting pr	ANY

	3. Entered into an agreement to a voluntary exclusion from bidding/contracting; 4. Been subject to an administrative proceeding or civil action seeking specific performance or restitution in connection with any local, state, or federal government contract; 5. Been denied an award of a local, state or federal government contract, had a contract suspended or had a contract terminated for non-responsibility; or 6. Had a local, state, or federal government contract suspended or terminated for cause prior to the completion of the term of the contract. □YES □NO
	b) Been indicted, convicted, received a judgment against them or a grant of immunity for any business related conducting constituting a crime under local, state or federal including but not limited to, fraud, extortion, bribery, racketeering, price-fixing, bid collusion or any crime related to truthfulness and/or business conduct? NO
	 e) Been issued a citation, notice, violation order, or are pending an administrative hearing or proceeding or determination of violations of: Federal, state or local health laws, rules or regulations.
4.	IN THE PAST THREE (3) YEARS, HAS THE VENDOR OR ITS AFFILIATES HAD ANY CLAIMS, JUDGMENTS, INJUNCTIONS, LIENS, FINES OR PENALTIES SECURED BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY? Indicate if this is applicable to the submitting vendor or affiliate. State whether the situation(s) was a claim, judgment, injunction, lien or other with an explanation. Provide the name(s) and address(es) of the agency, the amount of the original and outstanding balance. If any of these items are open, unsatisfied, indicate the status of each item as "open" or "unsatisfied". NO
5.	DURING THE PAST THREE (3) YEARS, HAS THE VENDOR FAILED TO: a) File any returns or pay any applicable federal, state or city taxes? Identify the taxing jurisdiction, type of tax, liability year(s), and tax liability amount the vendor failed to file/pay and the current status of the liability. □ YES □ NO
	b) File returns or pay New York State unemployment insurance? Indicate the year(s) the vendor failed to file/pay the insurance and the current status of the liability. YES NO
	c) Property Tax Indicate the year(s) the vendor failed to file. YES NO
6.	HAVE ANY BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS BEEN INITIATED BY OR AGAINST THE VENDOR OR IT'S AFFILIATES WITHIN THE PAST SEVEN (7) YEARS (WHETHER OR NOT CLOSED) OR IS ANY BANKRUPTCY PROCEDDING PENDING BY OR AGAINST THE VENDOR OR IT'S AFFILIATES REGARDLESS OF THE DATE OF FILING? Indicate if this is applicable to the submitting vendor or affiliate. If it is an affiliate, include the affiliate's name and FEIN. Provide the court name, address and docket number. Indicate if the proceedings have been initiated, remain pending, or have been closed. If closed, provide the date closed. □ YES □ NO
7.	IS THE VENDOR CURRENTLY INSOLVENT, OR DOES VENDOR CURRENTLY HAVE REASON TO BELIEVE THAT AN INVOLUNTARY BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDING MAY BE BROUGHT AGAINST IT? Provide financial information to support the vendor's current position, for example, Current Ration, Debt Ration, Age of Accounts Payable, Cash Flow and any documents that will provide the agency with an understanding of the vendor's situation. □ YES □ NO
8.	IN THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS, HAS THE VENDOR OR ANY AFFILIATES: a) Defaulted or been terminated on, or had its surety called upon to complete any contract (public or private) awarded; Indicate if this is applicable to the submitting vendor or affiliate. Detail the situation(s) that gave rise to the negative action, any corrective action taken by the vendor and the name of the contracting agency. □ YES □ NO

TOMPKINS COUNTY VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE

FEIN#

CERTIFICATION:

The undersigned: recognizes that this questionnaire is submitted for the express purpose of assisting Tompkins County in making a determination regarding an award of Contract or approval of a subcontract; acknowledges that the County may in its discretion, by means which it may choose, verify the truth and accuracy of all statements made herein; acknowledges that intentional submission of false or misleading information may constitute a felony under Penal Law Section 210.40 or a misdemeanor under Penal Law Section 210.35 or Section 210.45, and may also be punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment of up to five years under 18 USC Section 1001 and may result in Contract termination; and states that the information submitted in this questionnaire and any attached pages is true, accurate and complete.

The undersigned certifies that he/she:

- Has not altered the content of the questions in the questionnaire in any manner;
- Has read and understands all of the items contained in the questionnaire and any pages attached by the submitting vendor;
- Has supplied full and complete responses to each item therein to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief;
- Is knowledgeable about submitting vendor's business and operations;
- Understands that Tompkins County will rely on the information supplied in the questionnaire
 when entering into a Contract with the vendor;
- Is under duty to notify the Tompkins County Purchasing Division of any material changes to the vendor's responses.

Name of Business:	Signature of Owner
Address:	Printed Name of Signatory
City, State, Zip	Title
Sworn before me this day of	
Notary Public	
	Printed Name
	Signature
	Date

WIOA YOUTH PROGRAM

BI-MONTHLY REPORT

For Office/Board Use only:				
Received (date/initials)				
To Committee (date/initials)				

Tompkins County Workforce Development Board Youth Oversight Committee

Reporting Months: <u>Due Date:</u>

Jan & Feb 2022 Monday, March 14, 2022

March & April 2022 Monday, May 16, 2022

May & June 2022 Monday, July 18, 2022

July & August 2022 Monday, September 15, 2022

Sept & Oct 2022 Monday, November 14, 2022

Nov & Dec 2022 Monday, January 16, 2023

MONTHS/YEAR(S): Jan/Feb. 2022

Youth Oversight Committee Aspirations:

- All youth who are eligible for Job Link are enrolled
- All enrolled youth have a plan that was co-developed to meet both immediate and long-term goals
- All enrolled youth are actively engaged in services that will help them reach their goals
- All exits from the program are intentional

SECTION I: YOUTH OUTREACH

Please list all outreach activities conducted directly with youth (may use additional sheet(s) if needed)

Location of Outreach	Date Occurred (specify day of week as well)	Time Occurred (daytime, evening)	Type of outreach conducted (i.e. tabling, one-on-one, group, etc.)	Outcomes of outreach	Will this outreach be repeated?

Please list all agency, school, and business presentations (may use additional sheet(s) if needed)

Location	Date	Purpose of presentation

Please keep a running list of "Unique Community Partners" below:

SECTION II: ENROLLMENTS AND EXITS

For "New Enrollees": Please tally the number of new enrollees in past two months along with their ages and school status.

For "Total New Enrollees": Please tally the number of total new enrollees Year To Date along with their ages and school status.

For "Total Active Program Participants": Please tally the total number of new enrollees YTD <u>plus</u> any carry-over youth from previous program year. This number should reflect current total participants.

	Total Youth*	Total ISY*	Total OSY*	Total Ages 14- 15**	Total ages 16-18**	Total Ages 19- 21**	Total Ages 22- 24**
New							
Enrollees							
Total New							
Enrollees							
YTD PY '19							
Total Active							
Program							
Participants							
Youth in							
"follow-up"							
services							
New Exits							
Total Exits							
YTD PY '19							

^{*}to include DEI co-enrolled youth

For all New Exits, please list the reason for exit. If exited due to loss of contact, please list # of attempts to engage that youth; for exits due to employment, please list details of said employment placement

Intentional Exit (Y/N)	Reason for exit	# of exit follow up attempts	Unsubsidized Employment/Occupation	Wage Rate	# hours worked/week

^{**}please note "total ages" reflects the participants age at the time of enrollment

WIOA Youth Enrollments and Exits Program Totals (Historical Record for reference only)

	JULY 1, 2016 –	JULY 1, 2017 –	JULY 1, 2018 –	JULY 1, 2019	JULY 1, 2020
	JUNE 30, 2017	JUNE 30, 2018	JUNE 30, 2019	– JUNE 30,	– JUNE 30,
				2020	2021
TOTAL	33	15	48		
ENROLLMENTS					
TOTAL IN SCHOOL	4	2	8		
TOTAL OUT OF	29	13	40		
SCHOOL					
TOTAL EXITS	28	50	35		

SECTION III: PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

Please use this section to "bring the program to life"! Document the number of services provided in the reporting months per program element in the chart below & provide one sample of a client success story.

WIOA YOUTH PROGRAM ELEMENTS

PROGRAM ACTIVITIES TO BE PROVIDED:	TOTAL NUMBER OF SERVICES PROVIDED IN bi-monthly: YTD:		Services provided by:
Tutoring, study skills training			
Alternative secondary school services			
Paid/unpaid work experience			
Occupational skills training (i.e. youth ITAs, OJT,			
training not concurrent with work experience)			
Education offered concurrently with workforce			
preparation and training for specific occupation			
Leadership development			
Supportive Services			
Adult mentoring			
Follow-up services			
Comprehensive guidance and counseling			
Financial literacy education			
Entrepreneurial skills training			
Labor Market and employment information			
Transition to postsecondary education and/or			
training			

1.) Are all the program elements being provided as required? (Y/N) ______

Please explain answer provided:

2.) Please provide a brief client "success story", keeping client confidentiality in mind.

The YOC is interested in knowing more about <u>who</u> is being served to better understand program needs.